Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

95 Perry Street Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203 phone: 716-856-6525

fax: 716-856-6754 Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation Real Estate Committee Meeting

Monday, September 20, 2021 at Noon 95 Perry Street – 5th Floor, Boardroom

Agenda

- 1) Approval of Minutes Meeting of August 24, 2021 (Approval) (Enclosure)
- 2) Northland Beltline Corridor
 - a) Northland Central Phase I Construction Additional HVAC Work Claim Update (Information)
 - b) Northland Corridor Well Worth Products, Inc. Second Lease Renewal (Recommendation)
 - c) Northland Corridor Property Management Agreement Renewal (Recommendation)
 - d) Northland Corridor Other Tenant & Property Management Updates (Information)
 - e) Northland Corridor Misc. Project Management Updates (NWTC/ESD/BUDC MOU, Community Solar/Microgrid, BOA, 631 Northland, 541 E. Delavan, LISC, Albright Knox Northland) (*Information*)
- 3) Buffalo Lakeside Commerce Park (All Are Information Items)
 - a) Various Parcels Zephyr Investors Update
 - b) 255 Ship Canal Parkway Uniland Update
 - c) 193 Ship Canal Parkway Prospect Update
 - d) NYSDOT Skyway Alternatives Study
- 4) 308 Crowley Project Update (Information)
- 5) Adjournment (Approval)

Minutes of the Meeting of the **Real Estate Committee Buffalo Urban Development Corporation**

95 Perry Street **Buffalo. New York** August 24, 2021 12:00 p.m.

Committee Members Present:

Committee Members Absent:

Maria R. Whyte

Janique S. Curry Thomas A. Kucharski Brendan R. Mehaffy Kimberley A. Minkel, Chair Dennis M. Penman

Officers Present:

Brandye Merriweather, President Rebecca Gandour, Executive Vice President Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary Atiqa Abidi, Assistant Treasurer

Guests Present: Alexis M. Florczak, Hurwitz & Fine, P.C.; Arthur Hall, Senior Project Manager, BUDC; Thomas Mancuso, Mancuso Business Development Group; and Antonio Parker, BUDC Project Manager.

The meeting was called to order at 12:08 p.m. A quorum of the Committee was not present. Agenda items 2(a) and 2(b) were presented. Ms. Curry joined the meeting during the presentation of agenda item 2(b), at which time the Secretary confirmed that a quorum of the Committee was present. Mr. Mehaffy joined the meeting during the presentation of Item 2(f).

1.0 Approval of Minutes - Meeting of July 20, 2021 - The minutes of the July 20, 2021 Real Estate Committee meeting were presented. Mr. Penman made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by Ms. Curry and unanimously carried (4-0-0).

2.0 Northland Beltline Corridor

- (a) Northland Central NWTC/ESD/BUDC Memorandum of Understanding Update Mr. Hall reported that the company that was initially engaged to perform an equipment inventory has been re-engaged to update the equipment inventory list.
- (b) Northland Central LEED Certification/NYSERDA Update Mr. Hall reported on the receipt of the \$23,136 award for the achievement of LEED silver status for 683 Northland.
- (c) Northland Central Phase I Construction Additional HVAC Work Claim Update Mr. Zanner reported that a complaint was served upon Watts Architecture and Engineering and

Popli Design Group relating to the defective design of the Phase I HVAC system at 683 Northland. Answers from Watts and Popli are anticipated within the next week.

- (d) Northland Corridor 714 Northland Tenant Update Mr. Mancuso reported on lease renewal negotiations with Wellworth Products. The proposed renewal terms include a five year-extension of the current lease, with an additional tenant option for five years on a triple-net basis.
- (e) Northland Corridor Other Tenant & Property Management Updates Mr. Mancuso reported on a property damage matter involving a FedEx truck and fencing at 714 Northland property. FedEx is expected to pay for needed repairs to the fence. He also updated the Committee on several other maintenance matters, including filter replacements and a chiller refrigerant issue that is being repaired at an approximate cost of \$4,000. Mr. Mancuso then reported on tenant matters. SparkCharge has laid off some workers due to supply chain delays but anticipates usual production resuming once these delays are resolved. Garwood is continuing to invest in its space. A walk-through with Garwood of the 612 Northland space is scheduled in September.
- **(f)** Northland Corridor Misc. Project Management Updates Mr. Hall presented the following Northland Corridor updates to the Committee:

<u>683 Northland</u>: BUDC submitted a reimbursement request in the amount of \$47,222.88 from the ESD equipment grant.

<u>Community Solar/Microgrid</u>: BUDC submitted a first draw request to ESD for approximately \$50,000 in connection with the Microgrid project.

<u>612 Northland</u>: Albright Knox continues to showcase the Herve Tullet exhibit, which runs through September 12th.

<u>714 Northland</u>: Albright Knox continues to make progress on the mural at 714 Northland--three paintings are currently complete.

537/541 E. Delavan: A CCLR presentation was recently held, and staff continues to work on informational sheets regarding the 537/541 E. Delavan site. A grant application was submitted to the National Endowment Fund in the amount of \$150,000 for creative placemaking and public arts funding support. BUDC is partnering with Albright Knox and LISC to focus on bringing public art to six intersections within the Northland corridor.

<u>Community Outreach</u>: The Northland Beltline Taxpayers Association is hosting its Fall Festival on September 23rd.

<u>Business Network Series</u>: A meeting is scheduled for August 25, 2021 to plan the next Business Network Series on October 28, 2021, which will focus on contractors.

3.0 <u>Buffalo Lakeside Commerce Park</u>

(a) Canal Park Maintenance Agreement and Canal Bridge Maintenance Agreement — Ms. Gandour presented her August 24, 2021 memorandum regarding the canal park and canal bridge maintenance agreements. In October 2011, BUDC and the City of Buffalo entered into ten-year maintenance agreements with respect to Ship Canal Commons. These agreements are set to expire October 28, 2021, unless the City extends the term. Following the initial ten-year term, either BUDC or the City may terminate the agreements upon at least one-year written notice

to the other party. Ms. Gandour noted that over the past ten years, BUDC has incurred almost \$1.5 million in costs under these agreements for property maintenance obligations. She also noted that BUDC's responsibility for maintenance obligations at Ship Canal Commons was not intended to be a long-term obligation; rather, these obligations were to be assigned to the BLCP Property Owners Association (POA). Assigning the maintenance agreements to the POA will facilitate a smooth transition of these obligations to the POA.

The Committee discussed the assignment of the maintenance agreements to the POA. Mr. Mehaffy requested that staff consult with Commissioner Finn and made a motion to recommend, subject to that consultation, that the BUDC Board (i) approve the assignment of the maintenance agreements to the POA; (ii) approve the issuance of a notice of termination of the maintenance agreements; and (iii) authorize the BUDC President and Executive Vice President to execute such documents and take such actions as are necessary to implement these actions. The motion was seconded by Ms. Curry and unanimously carried (5-0-0).

(b) Various Parcels - Zephyr Investors LSA Due Diligence Extension - Ms. Merriweather presented her August 24, 2021 memorandum regarding the request of Zephyr Investors, LLC for an additional extension of the due diligence period under the Land Sale Agreement. The due diligence period with respect to the Land Sale Agreement between BUDC and Zephyr currently runs through September 30, 2021. Zephyr has proposed that the due diligence period be extended until the earlier of either July 31, 2022, or 120 days from the date that Zephyr obtains its MRTA license. In consideration for the proposed extension, Zephyr has offered to pay a nonrefundable monthly extension fee to BUDC in the amount of \$1,000 per month of the extended due diligence period. The fees will not be applied as a credit against the purchase price at closing. Zephyr has also requested an option for an additional one-year extension of the due diligence period through July 31, 2023 due to the present uncertainty regarding MRTA licensing requirements. If this extension is utilized, Zephyr would make \$3,000 monthly exclusivity fee payments from August 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 and \$7,500 monthly exclusivity fee payments for the period from January 1, 2023 through July 31, 2023. Zephyr has also agreed to deliver an additional \$67,000 deposit on August 1, 2022 which will be held in escrow. Ms. Merriweather noted that the proposed extension was discussed with the BUDC Board at the July 2021 meeting; however, due to the lack of quorum, formal action could not be taken. In the interim, BUDC issued a letter providing for a short-term interim 60-day extension of the due diligence period through September 30, 2021.

After a discussion, Mr. Kucharski made a motion recommending that the Board of Directors: (i) ratify the 60-day extension of the due diligence period; (ii) approve the extension of the due diligence period consistent with the terms outlined in the August 24, 2021 memorandum and such additional terms as may be negotiated by the President and Executive Vice President; and (iii) authorize the President and Executive Vice President to execute an amendment to the Agreement and take such other actions as are necessary or appropriate to implement this action. The motion was seconded by Mr. Penman and unanimously carried (4-0-0). Ms. Curry was not present for this vote.

- (c) <u>255 Ship Canal Parkway LSA Uniland LSA Update</u> Mr. Zanner reported that Judge Ward dismissed Sonwil's Article 78 proceeding due to Sonwil's lack of standing to bring the claim. He noted that Sonwil has the right to appeal the decision but has not done so to date. Ms. Gandour then reported to the Committee that the land sale with Uniland closed on August 20, 2021.
- (d) <u>193 Ship Canal Parkway Prospect Update</u> Ms. Gandour reported that a prospect is engaged in ongoing discussions with NYSDEC and Benchmark regarding the Brownfield Cleanup Program for this site.

- (e) <u>NYSDOT Skyway Alternatives Study</u> Presentation of this item was deferred to the August 2021 Committee meeting.
- **4.0** 308 Crowley Project Update Ms. Merriweather reported that demolition at the site is moving forward. Community feedback regarding the demolition work has been very positive. Phase I of the demolition is expected to continue through October 2021. The City and BUDC are pursuing funding for Phase 2 of the demolition work.
- **Adjournment** There being no further business to come before the Committee, upon motion made by Mr. Kucharski, seconded by Ms. Curry and unanimously carried, the August 24, 2021 meeting of the Real Estate Committee was adjourned at 12:48 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Telan

Kevin J. Zanner

Secretary

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

95 Perry Street Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203 phone: 716-856-6525 fax: 716-856-6754

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com



Item 2B

MEMORANDUM

TO: BUDC Real Estate Committee

FROM: Rebecca Gandour, BUDC Executive Vice President

SUBJECT: Well Worth Products, Inc. Second Lease Renewal

DATE: September 20, 2021

On February 28, 2019, 714 Northland LLC, a BUDC subsidiary, acquired title to 714 Northland Avenue. As part of the acquisition, 714 Northland LLC assumed the terms of the commercial lease between the previous landlord and Well Worth Products, LLC (Tenant). Pursuant to the terms of the lease, Well Worth had the option to exercise a Second Renewal Term for a period of three (3) additional years.

At the August 24th, 2021 meeting, the BUDC Real Estate Committee recommended the Northland Corridor property management and leasing service provider, Mancuso Business Development Group (Mancuso Group), negotiate the terms of the Second Renewal Term with Well Worth Products, LLC. Mancuso Group also prepared a broker value of opinion to determine fair market value for the base rent. The parties have now completed the preparation and negotiation of a Second Lease Renewal Agreement, the principal terms of which are as follows:

- A. Landlord: 714 Northland LLC (an affiliate of BUDC).
- B. Tenant: Well Worth Products Inc.
- C. Leased Premises: 714 Northland Avenue.
- D. Term: Five (5) years (resulting in two (2) additional years).
- E. Rent: Per schedule below:

\$6,618.30 per month from 10/01/21 to 9/30/24.

\$7,015.40 per month from 10/1/24 to 9/30/26.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Lease Renewal Agreement, the Tenant has been offered two (2) additional years under the Second Renewal Term and the option to exercise a Third Renewal Term (to commence upon the end of the Second Renewal Term). Upon such exercise of that Third Renewal Term option, there would be a new triple net lease generated by BUDC counsel and the rent due and payable to Landlord would be adjusted to the

fair market rate of monthly rent for the building under then-prevailing market conditions, as determined by an independent, qualified real estate appraiser.

F. <u>Utilities; Taxes</u>: Tenant is responsible for electric, gas and internet. Landlord is responsible for water, tax payments and Landlord property insurance.

In accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated Leasing Policy for Northland Corridor Properties, the President of BUDC shall present each proposed modification of an existing lease to the Real Estate Committee for Committee review and comment. Following such review and consistent with such Committee input, the President shall have the authority to negotiate and execute the lease modification, provided however, that the affirmative vote of a majority of the BUDC Real Estate Committee shall be required for any proposed modification to reduce or extend the term of any lease. As this is an extension of the current lease the approval of the BUDC Board of Directors shall not be required.

ACTION

We are requesting that the BUDC Real Estate Committee recommend approval of a Second Lease Renewal Agreement with Well Worth Products, LLC consistent with the terms outlined in this memorandum and to authorize the President or Executive Vice President to execute the Second Lease Renewal Agreement on behalf of 714 Northland LLC.

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

95 Perry Street Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203 phone: 716-856-6525 fax: 716-856-6754

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com



Item 2C

MEMORANDUM

TO: BUDC Real Estate Committee

FROM: Arthur Hall Jr., Senior Project Manager

SUBJECT: Northland Corridor – Property Management Agreement Renewal

DATE: September 20, 2021

In July 2015, the BUDC Board of Directors approved the Mancuso Business Development Group (Mancuso Group) to provide property management and leasing services for the Northland Beltline Campus property holdings. The initial agreement was structured with a five (5) year term to run through July 31, 2020. The length of the initial term was typical as it was essential to establish a longer-term relationship between the property owner and property manager and to establish a leasing strategy and accounting protocols.

In January 2021, the BUDC Board of Directors approved the renewal of the management contract with the Mancuso Group. The renewal was structured in one-year increments for a maximum of five (5) years. The scope of services appoints the manager to provide general supervision of the campus, including:

- Management of buildings providing complete operational services for the campus buildings.
- Repairs perform ordinary maintenance as needed and inform the BUDC in advance of annual facility costs and operations.
- Service Contracts maintaining tenant communications and relationships, contracts for utilities, other building maintenance services to include marketing properties, progress reports, and maintenance of current buildings on the Northland Beltline Campus.

BUDC, tenants within the Northland Campus, and the Delavan Grider neighborhood have worked closely with the Mancuso Group and staff over the previous years and have developed a strong working relationship. The Mancuso Group has become a mentor to the community, keeping them informed of the campus development, tenants, and common areas.

The Mancuso Group works closely with minority and small-owned business tenants and prospects. Tom Mancuso has worked closely with the tenants at 683 Northland to facilitate building security conversations and negotiations. He has worked with Frey Electric to coordinate energy usage with the 683 Northland Central building, the substation, and other uses on the campus. Mr. Mancuso has secured Garwood Medical to occupy the Red Shed and continues to facilitate the potential expansion of Garwood Medical into the 612 Northland building.

BUDC staff is recommending a one (1) year renewal of the agreement with Mancuso Group.

ACTION

We are requesting that the BUDC Real Estate Committee recommend that the Board of Directors (i) approve a one (1) year renewal of the agreement with Mancuso Business Development Group for property management and leasing services for Northland Beltline Campus consistent with the provisions outlined in this memorandum, and (ii) authorize the President or Executive Vice President to execute the such documents as may be necessary or appropriate to renew the agreement on behalf of BUDC and 683 Northland Master Tenant, LLC.